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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB
Fintech Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information and which include the financial statements of Etechaces
Employees Stock Option Plan Trust (the “Trust”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act . Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Assessment of carrying value of Investment in
subsidiaries [Refer Note 2(h), 2(t) and 6(a) to the
standalone financial statements]

The Company has made investments in various
unlisted subsidiaries, which are carried at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses (if any). The
carrying value of investments as on March 31, 2023
is Rs. 379,663.65 lakhs.

The Company has performed an assessment of
appropriateness of the carrying amount of the
investments as on the balance sheet date by
estimating their recoverable value, using the
discounted cash flow model with the involvement of
a valuation expert engaged by the management.
Based on its assessment, the management has
concluded that no provision for impairment was
necessary as at March 31, 2023.

We have considered this to be a key audit matter as
the carrying value of the investments is significant
to the standalone financial statements and the
assessment of recoverable value using discounted
cash flows forecast involves significant management
judgement in respect of certain key inputs like
determining an appropriate discount rate, future
cash flows and terminal growth rate:

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our audit procedures included the following:

- Understanding and testing the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls around
assessment of carrying amount of investments.

- Reading minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors/ Audit Committee and verifying
compliances with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

- Evaluating the independence, competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert
engaged by the management;

- Reading the report prepared by the external
valuation expert engaged by the management and
understanding and evaluating the key inputs and
assumptions underlying the valuation and
performing sensitivity analysis.

~ With the involvement of auditor’s valuation
expert, assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation model including independent assessment
of the assumptions underlying cash flow
projections, discount rate, terminal value etc.

- Evaluating the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures made in the financial statements.

Based on our procedures performed above, the
management’s assessment of the carrying value of
investments is considered appropriate.

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required

to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under
the relevant laws and regulations.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial
statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

7- In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

12. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

13. We did not audit the financial statements of the Trust included in the standalone financial statements of the
Company, which constitute total assets of Rs. 342.68 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 6.03 lakhs as at March 31,
2023, total revenue of Rs. 7.95 lakhs, net excess of income over expenditure of Rs. 6.15 lakhs and net cash
flows amounting to Rs. 134.57 lakhs for the year then ended. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the
standalone financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
the Trust, is based solely on the report of such other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books including the maintenance of backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India.
However, in the absence of adequate evidence, we were unable to verify whether the backup is maintained
on a daily basis during the period August 11, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

(c) The Standalone -Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, we draw reference
to our comment in paragraph 15(b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 24(i) to the standalone financial statements

ii. The Company has long term contracts as at March 31, 2023 for which there no material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2023.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 34(a) to the standalone financial statements);

(b)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 34(b) to the standalone financial statements); and

(c)Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for
books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting
software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year
beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.
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16. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

W /e <
ougata’Mukherjee

Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRN3792

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of PB
Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

o /élu

ougata Mukherjee
Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRN3792

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 4(a) to the
financial statements). Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of
change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any

inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise.
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ili. (a) The Company has made investments in 3 companies and 18 mutual fund schemes and granted
unsecured loans to 12 employees during the year. The aggregate amount during the year, and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans are as per the table given

below:
Particul Amount
cular
S (Rs. in lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year 13.40

- Loan to employees
Balance outstanding as a balance sheet date 8.15

- Loan to employees

(Also refer Note 6(c) to the financial statements)

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments / loans to employees (which are interest free), the terms

and conditions under which such loans were granted / investments were made are not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

(c) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated, and
the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated in a regular manner.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(¢) There were no loans which fell due during the year and were renewed / extended. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans.

() The loans granted to employees during the year, had stipulated the scheduled repayment of
principal and the same were not repayable on demand. There were no loans / advances in nature
of loans which were granted during the year to promoters / related parties.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
investments made by it and there were no loans/guarantees/security provided under aforesaid

section. The Company has not provided any loans/guarantees/security and made any
investments to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Vi, The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
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vii. (a)

®)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax, goods and services tax and labour welfare fund, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance and labour welfare fund which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2023 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of
the statute

Nature of
dues

Amount under
dispute
(Rs. in lakhs)

Amount
deposited
(Rs. in lakhs)

Period to
which the
amount

Forum
where the

ix. (a)

(®)

(©

@

(e)

dispute is

relates pending

Income Tax
(including
interest and
penalty)

Income
tax Act,
1961

Income Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

6,845.47 533.37 FY 2015-16

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised funds on short term basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates.

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the

Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.
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(x)(@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x.(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi.(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer Note 32 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX.  As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

ougata Mukherjee

Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRN3792

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(X in Lakhs)
5 As at As at
Particulars —— March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4(a) 227 11.86
Right-of-use assets 4(b) 773.66 1,079.78
Intangible assets 5 24.02 58.18
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(a) 379,668.65 220,402.51
(ii) Other financial assets 6(g) 135,860.94 117.26
Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 3,455.90 3,026.92
Other non-current assets 8 1145 0.07
Total non-current assets 519,796.89 224,696.58
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(b) 10,583.67 21,224.82
(i) Trade receivables 6(d) 89.32 555.96
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6(e) 2,943.08 21,757.00
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 6(D 45,965.13 302,499.50
(v) Loans 6(c) 8.15 821
(vi) Other financial assets 6(g) 159,083.35 119,506.33
Other current assets 9 234,09 2,180.25
Total current assets 218,906.79 467,732.07
Total assets 738,703.68 692,428.65
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10(2) 9,002,33 8,990.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature 10(b) - -
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 10(c) 727,267.97 680,490.11
Total equity 736,270.30 689,480.11
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities &(b) 484.15 825.73
Employee benefit obligati 11 30333 311.26
Total non-current liabilities 787.48 1,136.99
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 4b) 319.33 250,38
(ii) Trade payables
(2) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 12(a) 3236 14,50
(b) total outstanding dues other than (ji)(a) above 12(a) 39391 903.77
(iii) Other financial liabilities 12(b) 616,05 355.03
Employee benefit obligations 11 195.62 206.55
Other current liabilities 13 88.63 81.32
Total current liabilities 1,645.90 1,811.55
Total liabilities 2,433.38 2,948.54
Total equity and liabilities 738,703.68 692,428.65

The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

w?A-/?Au i

&

A

Sougata Mukherjee Y: iya Alok Bansal Mandeep Mehta Joshi

Partner Chainman and Chi Vice Chairman and  Chief Financial Company Secretary
Executive Officer Whole Time Director Officer

Membership No. 057084 DIN: 00706336 DIN: 01653526 M. No. F8032

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22,2023 Date: May 22,2023  Date: May 22, 2023
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(% in Lakhs)
. d Year ended Year ended
Epriculan Netes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Income:
Revenue from operations 14 13,414.58 10,318.36
Other income 15 19,473.71 11,424.79
Total income 32,888.29 21,743.15
E e — e 1 TY L 02
Expenses:
Employee benefit expense 16 38,197.50 48,380.38
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 373.90 389.57
Advertising and promotion expenses 18 302.67 378.16
Network and internet expenses 19 46144 356.17
Other expenses 20 878.82 2,148.54
Finance costs 21 89.70 114.84
Total expenses 40,304.03 51,767.66
Loss before tax (7.415.74) (30,024.51)
Income tax expense:
Current Tax 22(a) - -
Tax related to earlier years 22(a) (0.13) (56.14)
Deferred tax 22(b) = -
Total tax expense (0.13) (56.14)
Loss for the year (7.415.61) (29.968.37)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations [Gain] 11 19.17 94.17
Income tax relating to these items -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 19.17 94.17
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (7,396.44) (29,874.20)
Earnings/(Loss) per equity share [Face value per share ¥ 2/- (March 31, 2022: 2/-))

Basic () 26 (1.67) (7.32)
Diluted (%) 26 (1.67) (7.32)

The above Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Fi egistration Number: 012754N/N500016

bl

Sougata Mukherjee

Qg Ry

Yashish Dahiya Alok Bansal Mandeep Mchta hasker Joshi

Partner Chairman and Vice Chairman and  Chief Financial Company Secretary
Chief Executive Officer Whole Time Director Officer

Membership No. 057084 DIN : 00706336 DIN : 01653526 M. No. F8032

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22,2023 Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22, 2023
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

I) Equity share capital

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount Amount
Number of Shares ®in Lakh Number of Shares @ in Lakt
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 449,499 806 8,990.00 228,195 4.56
Add: Ci ion of C: i Isorik i shares (“CCCPS”) [Refer Note 10(a)] - - 234,270,485 4,685.41
Add: Borus shares issucd - - 176,735,820 353472
Add: Issue of shares on intial public offer - - 38,265,306 765.31
Add: New shares issued 616,543 1233 - .
MMsﬂrmdwE 450,116,349 300233 449,499,806 8,950.00
I Instruments entirely equity in nature shares)
Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Amount Amount
Number of Shares in Lakhs) Number of Shares @ in Lal
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year - - 594,274 118.86
Less: C ion of cumulatt sori i thares into
Lequity Shares (Befone bonss fssuc) [Refer Note 10(h)] s - (594,274) (11886)
Shares outstanding at the end of the year F = = =
) Other equity
(® in Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus
Particulary Notes i H ingy Equity settied sharcbased  Treasury shares reserve General reserve Total
payment reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2021 292,256.23 (13,768.46) 15,486.54 - 173 293,976.04
Loss for the year 10(c) - (29,968.37) - - - (29,968.37)
Other comprehenive income 10¢c) - 94.17 - - - A7
Total comprehensive incomel{loas) for the year - (22.874.20) - B - (29.874.20)
Transactions with ownery in their capacity as owners:
Exercise of options- transfeerred from equity settled sharc based payment reserve 10c) 29,630.27 - - - - 29,63027
Group Settled share based payment 25(b) - - 16,452.76 - - 16,452.76
Enployee share-based payment expense 16 - - 44,268.08 - - 44,268.08
‘Tramsfer to Securities Premium for exercise of options 10(c) - - (29,630.27) - - (29,630.27)
Amount received on issue of shares 10(c) 374,234.70 - - - - 37423470
Amount wtilised for share issue expenses (Refer note 33) 10(c) (10,465.99) - - - - (10,465.99)
Conversonof Cramulai fsori ible preference shares 10 4,566.56 4,566.56
(‘CCCPS") [Refer Note 10(0)] © ey : < £ 2 55639
Bonus shares issued 10¢c) (3.534.72) - - & = B.53472)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 67155393 (1364266 4657711 E 113 €30,490.11
Loss for the year 10() = (7,415.61) = - - (7,415.61)
Other comprehensive income 106c) - 1917 - - - 19.17
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - [7396.44) 3 - - (T I96.44)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Exercise of options- transferred from equity settled sharc based payment reserve 10(c) 20,271.62 - - - - 20,271.62
Group Settled share based payment 25() - - 20,186.91 - - 20,186.91
Employee share-based payment expense 16 . - 33,981.52 - - 33,981,52
Transfer to Securities Premium for exercise of options 10(c) - - (20,271.62) - - (20,271,62)
Net results of ESOP trust operations 10) . - : 587 - 5487
Balance as at March 31, 2023 69782555 1.039.1 B0AT7302 587 1.73 T17.267.97
The above Standalone Statement of changes in cquity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
This is the Standalone Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Chartered A LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 01275 6
b\?pJ} ,A -
I‘ L]
Sougata Makherjec Alck Bansal
Partncr Viee Chairman and
Whole Time Director Officer
Membership No. 057084 DIN : 01653526 M. No. F8032
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22,2023 Datc: May 22, 2023




PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
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. March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Particalars Notes ® in Lakhs) R in Lakhs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (7.415.74) (30,024.51)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 373.90 389,57
Property, plant and equipment written off’ 20 0.03 0.05
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 15,20 (4.90) 0.64
Net gain on sale on financial assets datorily d at fair value through profit or loss 15 (1,118.39) (989.02)
Liabilities no longer required written back 15 (526.36) -
Net fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 15 205.29 (432.42)
Loss allowance- Trade receivables 20 - 19.15
Loss allowance no longer required written back 15 (3241) -
Loss allowances - other financials assets 20 - 336
Bad debts 20 742 -
Interest Income - Unwinding of di - d at ised cost 15 ©.97) (118.48)
Interest income - On bank deposits 15 (17,83229) (9,625.59)
Interest income - On income tax refund 15 (153.35) -
Gain on termination of leases 15 - (1.66)
Finance costs 21 89.70 114,84
Net (gain) / loss - foreign exchange differences 15,20 (1.18) 6,02
Employee share-based P 16 33,981.52 44,268.08
Change in operating assets and Liabilities:
(@ /Dy in trade ivabl 491.62 62023
I /(De ) in trade payabl (492.54) 579.22
(L /Dy in other t assets (11.38) 97.43
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 1,946.16 (1,949.09)
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 261.02 (154.67)
(Increase)/Decrease in current tax assets 013 56.14
(Increase)/Decrease in loans current 0.06 6.1
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (9.832.00) (4,944.94)
1 (D ) in empl benefit obli 031 61.91
Increase/(D: ) in other current liabilities 731 (2.933.35)
Cash foutflow) from operstions (66.04) {M‘
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (428.98) (710.16)
Net eash !uulﬂm! from omling activities (A) {495.02) !gﬁlﬂ!
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of prop plant and equi and i ible assets 4a),s (29.68) 4.76)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10.52 ‘ 223
I in subsidiaries and associ 6(a) (139,079.23) (89,301.27)
Purchase of current investments (26,378.16) (66,446.81)
Proceeds from redemption / sale of current investments 38,464.65 46,643.43
I;mem:nbankdeposns (having original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve 60 (45.965.13) (302,499.50)
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months but less 66 302,499.50 137,040.74
than twelve months)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than twelve months) (277,222.00) (109,505.00)
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than twelve months) 111,743.27 -
Interest received 15 17,985.64 9,62559
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities B) [17,97@ (374,84535)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from initial public offer (net of share issue expenses) 10(a),10(b),10(c) - 364,534 02
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 10(2) 1233 -
Principal elements of lease payments (272.63) (238.11)
Interest paid 21 (87.98) (113.48)
Net eash inflow/{eutfllow }from Gnnng' activities (C) _% 364,182.43
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (18,813.92) (16,335.94)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,757.00 38,092.94
Cash and cash equivalents at ead of the vear 2.943.08 21,757.00
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| Reconciliation of cash and cash equival as per standal of cash flows
Cash and cash equival as per above prise of the foll

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

® in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs)

Balances with banks - in current accounts 6(e) 94079 1,763.69
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 6(e) 2,001.23 19,992.25
Cash on hand 6(e) 1.06 1.06
Balances as per statement of cash flows 2,943.08 21,757.00
Notes:

1. The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard [Ind AS -7 on "Statement of Cash Flows"].

2. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflows.

3. The above Standalone Statement of cash flows should be read in

with the

Tl:isisﬂ:eStandzloneStztmcnfomehFlqurefenedtoinourreportufevandm.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Acconntants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Fyty

embership No. 057084

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023

Chairman and Chief

N

Alok Bansal
Vice Chairman and
Whole Time

DIN : 01653526

Mandesp Mﬂé%ﬁshi
c 5
o3 p

Chief Financial
Offi

'y

M. No. F8032

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22,2023  Date: May 22, 2023
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: General Information

PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)(“the Company” or “PB Fintech”) is a Company
incorporated on 4th June 2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at
Plot no.119, Sector 44, Gurugram, Haryana. The Company got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange (NSE), in India on November 15, 2021.

The Company was converted from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited Company, pursuant to a
special resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting of the Shareholders of the Company held on
June 19, 2021 and consequently the Name of the Company was changed to PB Fintech Limited with effect
from June 30, 2021 pursuant to a fresh certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies
(ROC).

The Company is an integrated online marketing and consulting Company and is in the business of rendering
online marketing and information technology consulting/support services largely for the financial service
industry, including insurance.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated:

a. Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule II). These standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated.

b. Historical Cost Convention

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following items:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value;

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and

- Share based payments

¢. Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to
time. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. % :
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

d. New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate affairs had vide notification dated March 23, 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, which amended certain accounting standards, and are
effective April 01, 2022. These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

¢. New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and
are effective April 01, 2023. The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1,

Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in
the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a

consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy already complies with
the now mandatory treatment.

f. Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization

and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet
date is classified as capital advances under the non-current assets.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods. estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over the useful
lives, using the straight line method. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation
perfomed by the management which in some cases are different as compared to those specified by
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

The residual value of the assets are assessed to be nil. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

e
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives of assets have been considered as follows:

Description Useful life
Computers 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures* 7 years
Office Equipment* 3 years
Lease hold Period of Lease or 3
Improvements years whichever is
earlier

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence,
useful lives of these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1I of
the Companies Act, 2013.

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial
year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amortization period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has software licenses under intangible assets which are amortized over a period of 3 years.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible

assets recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of intangible assets.

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Company assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an
indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other

assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of

/¥
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PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

disposal. If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
asset or CGU is considered impaired and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account.

If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash
flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue as follows:

Sale of services
The Company earns revenue from services as described below:

1) Online marketing and consulting services — includes advertisement banners on its website and bulk
emailer services

2) Commission from online aggregation of financial products - includes commission earned for sale of
financial products based on the leads generated from its designated website

3) IT support services - includes services related to IT application and solutions

Revenue from above services (other than IT support services) is recognized at a point in time when the
related services are rendered as per the terms of the agreement with customer. Revenue from IT Support
Services is recognised over time. Revenue is disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on such
services. In terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the
balance sheet as unbilled trade receivables as the amount is recoverable from the customer without any
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future performance obligation. Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised as a contract
liability, if any.

Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed
until such uncertainty is resolved.

No significant element of financing is deemed present as the services are rendered with a credit term of
30-45 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) Fees

Income from IPR fees is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements. Refer Note 27.

j. Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional.
The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost, less loss allowance.

k. Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’) i.e. Indian
rupee (INR), which is PB Fintech Limited’s (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited) functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Initial recognition: On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to
the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transactions.

Subsequent recognition: As at the reporting date, foreign currency monetary items are translated using
the closing rate and non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange gains and losses arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated on initial récognition during the year or in
previous financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

1. Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity, Compensated
absences and Share based payments.

i) Defined contribution plans
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The Company’s contributions to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme are considered as
contribution to defined contribution plan and charged as an expense based on the amount of contributions
required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.

ii) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the
return on plan asset, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognized in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined liability or asset.

iii) Short-term obligations

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the services.

These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(2) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their
entitlement of future compensated absences;

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

iv) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations in relation to compensated absences are presented as current liabilities in the balance
sheet as the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

v) Share-based payments
The Company operates a number of equity settled, employee share based compensation plans, under
which the Company receives services from employees as consideration for equity shares of the

Company. The Company has granted stock options to its employees and employees of its subsidiaries.

The fair value of the employees services received in exchange for the grant of the options is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options as at the Grant Date and is recognised as an ‘employee
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benefit expense’ with a corresponding increase in other equity. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period which is the period over which the applicable vesting condition is to be satisfied. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

1. including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)
2. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions, and
3. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to other equity.

The expense relating to options granted to the employees of subsidiaries is not cross charged to the
subsidiaries. Therefore, the fair value of the employees’ services received by these subsidiaries
(determined by reference to the fair value of the options as at the Grant Date) is recognised as an
‘investment in subsidiaries’ with a corresponding increase in other equity.

m. Treasury shares (Shares held by the ESOP Trust)

The Company has created an Etechaces Employee Stock Option Plan Trust (ESOP Trust) for providing
share-based payment to its employees under Employee Stock Option Plan 2014 (“ESOP- 2014”) and
Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 (“ESOP — 2020). The Company uses Trust as a vehicle for
transferring shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The Company allots shares
to ESOP Trust. The Company in its standalone financial statements treats ESOP trust as its extension and
shares held by ESOP Trust are treated as treasury shares. Share options exercised during the reporting
year are settled with treasury shares.

n. Leases

Company as a lessee:
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.

Lease liabilities:

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the future lease payments.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments are
allocated between principal and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
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of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use of assets:

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and lease payments made before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the asset’s lease term on a straight-line basis.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets:

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment including IT equipment.

o. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year excluding treasury shares. Diluted earmnings per share is
computed by dividing the profit afier tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense
or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where
results are anti-dilutive.

p.- Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.

q. Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

r. Income Taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
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at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that is probable that tax profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

s. Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since
this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is
appropriate. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

t. Financial Instruments
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A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through
profit and loss), and

* those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial Recognition:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement:

After initial measurement, financial assets classified at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the financial asset other than equity

instruments, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit
and loss.

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting
date with all the changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity.
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are measured at cost. The investments are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions
of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial
assets is followed.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with.its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 30 details how the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income
within other income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI
is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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u. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective rate of interest.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

v. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency.

w. Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. Refer Note 37
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x. Exceptional items

Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities,
however are of such significance and nature that separate disclosure enables the user of the financial
statements to understand the impact in a more meaningful manner.

y. Contributed equity

The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity (net of any
related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

The transaction costs incurred with respect to the Initial Public Offer (IPO) of the Company as reduced
by the amount recovered from the selling shareholders are allocated between issue of new equity shares
and listing of existing equity shares. The costs attributable to issuance of new equity shares is
recognised in equity. The remaining costs attributable to listing of existing equity shares is recognised
in profit or loss.

z. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule IIT (Division II), unless otherwise stated
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Note 3: Critical estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the
Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out
to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements:

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Refer Note 11
Recognition of deferred tax assets— Refer Note 22(b)
Leases — Refer Note 4(b)

Contingent liabilities — Refer Note 24(i)

Share based payments — Refer Note 25

Impairment on Non-Current Investments — Refer Note 2(t)

VVVVVY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Note 4(a) : Property, plant and equipment

(® in Lakhs)

Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leasehold Total
Equipments Fixtures Improvements
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 43.13 25.30 11.41 26.21 106.05
Additions 351 - - - 3.51
Disposals (35.78) (19.15) (3.60) (4.49) (63.02)
Closing gross carrying amount 10.86 6.15 7.81 21.72 46.54
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 21.81 24.38 8.24 26.21 80.64
Depreciation charge for the year 11.73 0.63 1.78 - 14.14
Disposals (32.91) (19.15) (3.55) (4.49) (60.10)
Closing accumulated depreciation 0.63 5.86 6.47 21.72 34.68
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 10.23 0.29 1.34 - 11.86
Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 10.86 6.15 7.81 21.72 46.54
Additions - 0.43 - - 0.43
Disposals (5.48) (3.67) (6.52) (21.72) (39.39)
Closing gross carrying amount 5.38 0.91 1.29 - 7.58
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 0.63 5.86 6.47 21.72 34.68
Depreciation charge for the year 478 0.29 0.55 - 5.62
Disposals (1.11) (5.67) (6.49) (21.72) (34.99)
Closing accumulated depreciation 4.30 0.48 0.53 - 5.31
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 1.08 0.43 0.76 - 2.27
T T
AL P
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Note 4(b) : Leases

This note provides information for the leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company has taken various office premises on leases. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 year to 5 years, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

(i) Amounts recognised in standalone balance sheet
The standalone balance sheet shows the following amount relating to leases:

(a) Right of use assets

® in Lakhs)

Particulars N ass.ets ' Total
Office premises
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 2,159.51 2,159.51
Additions - -
Disposals (54.48) (54.48)
Closing gross carrying amount 2,105.03 2,105.03
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 727.53 727.53
Depreciation charge for the year 316.62 316.62
Disposals (18.90) (18.90)
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,025.25 1,025.25
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 1,079.78 1,079.78
Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 2,105.03 2,105.03
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount 2,105.03 2,105.03
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 1,025.25 1,025.25
Depreciation charge for the year 306.12 306.12
Disposals - =
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,331.37 1,331.37
Net carrying amount as at March 31,2023 773.66 773.66
(b) Lease liabilities (X in Lakhs)
. As at As at

ATt March 31,2023 | Mareh 31,2022
Current 319.33 250.38
Non current 484,15 825.73
Total 803.48 1,076.11
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(ii) Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss
The standlone statement of profit or loss shows the following amount relating to leases:

(¥ in Lakhs)
3 As at As at
rti
P eninry March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
(@) Depreciation charge on right of use assets [refer Note 17] 306.12 316.62
(b) Interest expenses - lease liabilities (included in finance cost) [refer Note 21] 87.98 113,48
Total (a+b) 394.10 430.10

(iiii) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31,2023 was T 360.61 Lakhs (March 31,2022 - Z 351.59 Lakhs)

(iv) Extension and termination options:-
Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Company’s operations. The extension and termination options held are exercisable by both the Company and the respective lessor.

(v) Critical judgments in determining the lease term:-

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of office premises, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

a) If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

b) Ifany leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

c) Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased asset,

Most extension options in office leases have been included in the lease liability, because the Company could not replace the assets without significant cost or business
disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of
reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of
the lessee.

During the current financial year, no leases have been terminated. During the previous financial year, the financial impact of revising the lease terms to reflect the effect
of exercising termination options was a net decrease in recognised lease liabilities and right-to use of assets of ¥ 37.24 Lakhs and Z 35.58 Lakhs respectively.
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Note 5 : Intangible assets
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(R in Lakhs)
Particulars Computer Software Total
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 151.09 151.09
Additions 1.25 1.25
Disposals (26.46) (26.46)
Closing gross carrying amount 125.88 125.88
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 3535 3535
Amortisation charge for the year 58.81 58.81
Disposals (26.46) (26.46)
Closing accumulated amortisation 67.70 67.70
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 58.18 58.18
Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 125.88 125.88
Additions 29.25 29.25
Disposals (2.63) (2.63)
Closing gross carrying amount 152.50 152.50
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 67.70 67.70
Amortisation charge for the year 62.16 62.16
Disposals (1.38) (1.38)
Closing accumulated amortisation 128.48 128.48
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 24.02 24.02
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Note 6 : Financial assets

Note 6(a) : Non-current Investments

As at Marceh 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
[Particulars No. of Shares | Face value per | ( in Lakhs) No. of Shares | Face value per | (% in Lakhs)
share (X) share )

A. Investments in equity instruments (fally paid up)

Unquoted

(i) Subsidiary Companies (at cost)

a) Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited [Refer note (i) and (ii) below] 93,812,506 10 259,058.89 74,848,195 10 134,970.36
Sub-total 259,058.89 134,97036
b) Paisab Marketing and C ing Private Limited [Refer note (i) and (ii) below] 44,824,179 10 95,164.42 39,077,053 10 65,125.84
Sub-total 95,164.42 65,125.34
¢) Docprime Technologies Private Limited [Refer note (i) and (ii) below] 8,976,969 10 9,328.30 8,976,969 10 9,325.70
Less: Impairment in value of investment (2,989.39) (2,989.39)
Sub-total 6,338.91 6,336.31
d) Icall Support Services Private Limited [Refer note (i) and (ii) below] 182,365 100 2,980.77 182,365 100 2,918.21
Less: Impai in value of i (2,069.10) (2,069.10)}
Sub-total 911.67 849.11
€) PB Marketing and Consulting Private Limited [Refer note (i) below] 5,740,000 10 574,00 5,740,000 10 574.00
Less: Impairment in value of investment (72.00) (72.00)
Sub-total 502.00 502.00
f) Accurex Marketing and Consulting Private Limited [Refer note (i) below] 2,451,000 10 245.10 2,451,000 10 245.10
Less: Impairment in value of investment (208.37) (208.37)
Sub-total 36.73 36.73
£) PB Financial Account Aggregators Private Limited [Refer note (i) below] 5,000,000 10 500.00 5,000,000 10 500.00
Sub-total 500.00 500.00
h) PB Fintech FZ-LLC [Refer note (ii) below] 48,963 AED 1,000 12,688.96 48,963 AED 1,000 11,694.32
_Sul»wtal 12,688.96 11,694.32
i) Myloancare Ventures Private Limited (Associate till June 7, 2022) 5,633 10 126,86 5,633 10 126 86
Sub-total 126.86 126.86

375,328.43 220,141.53

(ii) Others (at fair value through profit or loss)

Swasth Digital Health Foundation 5,000 100 5.00 5,000 100 5.00
Sub-total 5.00 5.00
Total (A) 375,333.43 220,146.53
B. Investmeants in preference shares (fully paid up)

Unquoted

(i) Subsidiary Company (at cost)

0,01% N latt pulsorily convertible prefe shares in Myl Ventures Private 173,783 10 433522 11,367 10 25598
Lirnited

Total (B) 4,335.22 255.98
Total (A+B) 379,668.65 220,402.51
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregate amount of ungnoted investments 379,668.65 220,402.51
| Aggregate amount of impairment in value of i (5,338.86) (5.338.86)|
Notes:

(i) Including shares held by nominees of the Company.
(ii) Including cost of stock opti 11 d to employees of subsidiary
(iii) Face value per share is in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated
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Note 6(b) : Current Investments
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Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Number of (R in Lakhs) Number of (X in Lakhs)

shares/units shares/units
A. Investments in equity instruments - Quoted
(At fair value through profit or loss)
Star Health and Allied Insurance Company Limited 111,120.00 575.93 111,120.00 789.45
Total (A) 575.93 789.45
B. Investment in mutual funds - Unquoted
(At fair value through profit or loss)
ICICI Prudential Nifty PSU Bond Plus SDL Sep 2027 40:60 Index Fund 17,189,311.58 1,799.91 - -
Axis Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Dir - Growth 74,278.40 1,699.92 - -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Nifty SDL Plus PSU Bond Sep 2026 60:40 Index Fund 14,301,344.43 1,499.93 - -
Direct - Growth
UTI Liquid Cash Plan Direct Growth Plan 27,150.85 1,001.71 - -
Bandhan Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 36,836.71 1,001.43 - -
Kotak Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 22,021.29 1,001.62 - -
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 300,610.72 1,001.59 257,242.71 810.97
Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 18,188.50 1,001.63 19,469.89 1,014.00
Aditya Birla Sun life Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth - - 367,718.79 2,126.74
Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Direct - Growth - - 82,317.12 2,132.03
DSP Liquidity Fund - Direct - Growth - - 48,285.16 1,469.31
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct - Growth - - 492,718.42 1,512.12
Invesco India Treasury Advantage Fund - Direct - Growth - - 68,212.39 2,164.18
Kotak Savings Fund - Direct - Growth - - 7.231,194.00 2,605.41
Nippon India Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth - - 67,658.98 2,143.97
SBI Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth - - 28,978.81 965.89
UTI Treasury Advantage Fund - Direct - Growth - - 82,168.65 2,376.52
Aditya Birla Sun life Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth - B 324,731.32 1,114.23
Total (B) 10,007.74 20,435.37
Total current investments (A+B) 10,583.67 21,224.82
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 575.93 789.45
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 10,007.74 20,435.37
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

N N
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Note 6(c) : Loans Asat As at
March 31,2023  March 31,2022
R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs)

Current
Loan to employees 815 821
Total 8.15 821
Break-up of security details Asat Asat
March 31,2023  March 31,2022
(X in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs)
Loans considered good - Secured = -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 815 821
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk = =
Loans - credit impaired & =
Total 8.15 821
Loss allowance F: =
Total Loans 8.15 821
Note 6(d) : Trade receivables . Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
( in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs)
Trade receivables from contract with customers
- Billed 3494 23414
- Unbilled# 55.48 351.96
Loss allowance (1.10) (30.14)
Total 8932 555.96
292
Current portion 8932 555.96
Non- Current portion - -
As at As at
Break-up of security details March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs)
Trade receivabl idered good - S d - -
Trade receivabl idered good - U d 90.42 586.10
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Total 90.42 586.10
Less: Loss allowance (1.10) (30.14)
Total 8932 55596
# The receivable is ‘unbilled” because the Company has not yet issued an invoice; however, the balance has been included under trade receivables because it is an unconditional right to consideration.
Aging of Trade receivables as at March 31,2023: (2 in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Facticalars Unbilled Notdge | 1etthan6 | 6months-1 1-2 years 23 years More than 3 years )
months years
| Undisputed trade receivables
idered good 55.48 20.60 - 14.34 - - - 90.42
which have significant i in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables
idered good S = - E = 5 % E
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - = - - - -
Total 55.48 20.60 = 1434 = = - 90.42
Aging of Trade receivables as at March 31, 2022: (R in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
rarticulars Unbilled Not doe Less than 6] {6 months- 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years e
months years
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good 351.96 56.07 127.95 3823 - - 11.89 586.10
which have significant i in credit risk - - - - = - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables
considered good - - - - - - - -
which have significant i in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total 351.96 56.07 127.95 3823 - - 11.89 586.10




Note 6(e) : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- In current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

Total

Note 6(f) : Other bank balances

Balances in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity
more than 3 months but less than 12 months*
Total

* Includes fixed deposits of X 5,997.46 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: % 5,502.62 Lakhs) under lien

Note 6(g) : Other financial assets

Non-current

Security deposits

Balances in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity more than 12 months
Total

Current
Security deposits
Less: Loss allowance

Balances in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity more than 12 months
Amount ivable from subsidiary companies [Refer note 27]
Total

Note 7 : Current tax assets (Net)

Advance income tax [net of provision  Nil (March 31, 2022: X 772,68 Lakhs)]
Total

Note 8 : Other non-current assets

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Total

Note 9 : Other current assets

Adbvance to vendors

Balance with Government Authorities
Prepaid expenses

Others

Total

']uoo—bﬂm}ng

As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
® in Lakhs) @ in Lakhs)
940.79 1,763.69
2,001.23 19,992 25
1.06 1.06

2,943.08 21,757.00

Asat Asat
March 31,2023  March 31,2022
@ in Lakhs) @ in Lakhs)

45,965.13 302,499.50
45,965.13 302,499.50
Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
( in Lakhs) ( in Lakhs)
12723 117.26
135,733.71 -
135&034 117.26
31219 313.05
- (3.36)
31219 309.69
145,974.79 111,743.27
12,796.37 7,453.37
159.083.35 11950633
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs)
3,455.90 3,026.92
3!455.90 3&6.92
Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
(R in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs)
022 -
11.23 0.07
11.45 0.07
Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(R in Lakhs) [ in Lakhs)
6523 7868
90.79 1,893.15
66,65 20842
11.42 -
234.09 2,180.25
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Equity

Note 10(a): Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital
Amount
Number of shares ®in Lakhs)
As at April 01,2021 500,000 10.00
Add: Increase during the year 490,000,000 9.800.00
As at March 31, 2022 490,500,000 9,810.00
Add: Increase during the year - Z
As at March 31, 2023 490,500,000 9,810.00
() Movements in equity share capital
Amount
Number of shares ( in Lakhs)
As at Apnl 01, 2021 228,195 4.56
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year [Refer note (ii} below] 176,735,820 3,534.712
Add: C ion of lati Isorily convertible preference shares into equity shares [Refer note (iii) below] 234,270,485 4,685.41
Add: Issue of shares on initial public offer during the year [Refer note (iv) below] 38,265,306 765.31
As at March 31, 2022# 449,499,806 8.990.00
Add: Shares issued during the year 616,543 1233
As at March 31, 2023# 450,116,349 9,002.33

# Includes 3,747,238 treasury shares (March 31, 2022 - 10,398,500 treasury shares) held by Employee Stock Option Plan Trust (ESOP Trust).

(ii) Pursuant to approval of shareholders in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 19, 2021, the Company issued 176,735,820 equity shares of face value of T 2/- each towards Bonus Shares
on June 28, 2021 in the ratio 1:499.

(iii) Pursuant to approval of shareholders in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 19, 2021, the Company converted lative Isorily convertible preference shares ("CCCPS") into
equity shares as follows:

a) June 03, 2021: 125,985 CCCPS converted into 125,985 equity shares in the ratio of 1:1

b) June 28, 2021: 468,289 CCCPS converted into 234,144,500 equity shares in the ratio of 1:500.

(iv) During the previous year, the Company leted an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 58,262,397 Equity Shares of face value of T 2/ each at a price of T 980 per equity share comprising of fresh
Issue of 38,265,306 equity shares and on offer for sale of 19,997,091 equity shares. [Refer note 33]

(v) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2/- per share (March 31, 2022 - 3 2/- per share). Each sharehalder is eligible for ane vote per share held. Any
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the casuing Annual Gencral Meeting, except in case of interim dividend In the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential m ion to their shareholdi

b LD

(vi) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
Makesense Technologies Limited 59,890,000 1331% 59,890,000 13.32%
Claymore Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd 25,737,500 5.12% 25,737,500 5.73%
SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited 25,940,000 5.76% 25,940,000 5.77%
Tencent Cloud Europe B.V. 37.665.000 837% 37,665,000 8.38%
Total 149,232,500 33.15% 149.232.500 33.20%

(vii) Details of shareholding of promoters:
The Company is a professionally d Company and it does not have any promoters in terms of section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013.

(viii) During the five years immediately preceding the reporting date, no shares have been bought back, issued for consideration other than cash except for conversion of CCCPS into equity shares [Refer
note (iii)] and bonus shares issued are as follows:

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Allotted as fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus - 176,735,820 - - B -
Additional equity shares alloted as fully paid up for conversion of CCCPS - 233,676,211 - - - -
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Equity

Note 10(b): Instrumeats entirely equity in nature (cumulative compulsorily couvertible preference shares)

Authorised preference share capital
Number of shares Amount
R in Lakhs)
As at April 01,2021 950,000 190.00
Add: Increase during the year = 2
As at March 31,2022 950,000 190.00
Add: Increase during the year = <
As at March 31,2023 950,000 190.00
(i) Movements in preference share capital:
Number of shares Amount
® in Lakhs)
As at April 01, 2021 594,274 118.86
Less: Shares converted into equity shares during the year (594,274) (118.86)
As at March 31, 2022 - -
Add/Less: Changes during the year =
As at March 31,2023 - -
(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions hed to lati pulsorily convertible preference shares (‘CCCPS?)

The Company issued 594,274, 0.1% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (‘CCCPS’), Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series E, Series F and Series G of % 20 per share.
These shares being mandatorily convertible along with other terms and conditions qualify as entirely equity in nature in accordance with Ind AS 32. Following were the terms and conditions of the
instrument:

a) Voting right of cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shareholders was the same as that of equity shareholders and each holder of lative compulsorily convertible prefe shares
was entitled to one vote per share.

b) In addition to and after payment of the Preferential Dividend, each Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series E, Series F and Series G Preference Share would be entitled to participate pari
passu in any dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including Equity Shares) or series on 2 pro rata, as-if-converted basis.

c) The preferential dividend was payable at the rate of 0.1% per annum

d) The Preferential Dividend @ 0.1% per annum was cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether or not paid, and accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued
from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon Shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal year.

(iil) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is ot applicable as the preference shares were converted into equity shares, [Refer note (v)]

(iv) Terms of conversion for cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares

(a) The Compary issued 594,274 lative pulsorily convertible prefe shares upto March 31, 2021, which were convertible into 594,274 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each at any time at the
option of the holder of the preference shares.

(b) The preference shares can be convertible automatically on (i) the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the date of issue of such Preference Share; or (ii) upon the completion of a Qualified Public
Offering and listing of all equity shares of the Company on the relevant stock exchange after such letion in accordance with the terms of the issue, whichever is earlier,

(v) Conversion of cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares into equity shares

Pursuant to approval of shareholders, the Company converted lative compulsorily convertible prefe shares ("CCCPS") into equity shares as per details given below:
a) June 03, 2021: 125,985 CCCPS converted into 125,985 equity shares in the ratio of 1:1.

b) June 28, 2021: 468,289 CCCPS converted into 234,144,500 equity shares in the ratio of 1:500 taking effect of bonus shares issued to equity shareholders on June 28, 2021.




Other Equity

Note 10 (c): Reserves and surplus
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(X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Securities premium 697,825.55 677,553.93

. Retained eamnings (51,039.10) (43,642.66)
Equity settled share based payment reserve 80,473.92 46,577.11
General Reserve 1.73 1.73
Treasury shares reserve 5.87 -
Total reserves and surplus T727,267.97 680,490.11
i) Securities premium
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 677,553.93 292,256.23
Add: Amount received on issue of shares - 374,234.70
Add: Exercise of options transferred from equity settled share based payment reserve 20,271.62 29,630.27
Less: Amount utilised for share issue expense (Refer note 33) - (10,465.99)
Less: Issue of Bonus shares - (3,534.72)
Less: Conversion of CCCPS into equity shares # - (4,566.56)
Closing balance 697,825.55 677,553.93
ii) Retained earnings
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance (43,642.66) (13,768.46)
Loss for the year (7.415.61) (29,968.37)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earings

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 19.17 94.17
Closing balance (51,039.10) (43,642.66)
iii) Equity settled share based payment reserve
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 46,577.11 15,486.54
Add: Additions for employee share-based payment expense incurred 54,168.43 60,720.84
Less: Transfer to Securities Premium for exercise of options (20,271.62) (29,630.27)
Closing balance 80,473.92 46,577.11
iv) General Reserve
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 1.73 1.73
Add : Transfer during the year from equity settled share based payment reserve - -
Closing balance 1.73 1.73
V) Treasury shares reserve
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance = =
Add: Net results of ESOP Trust operations 5.87 -
Closing balance 5.87 -

# As per the terms of Preference sharcholders agreement, if the Company issues bonus shares to the equity shareholders, the number of
equity shares to be issued on any subsequent conversion of CCCPS shall be increased proportionately. During the year ended March 31,
2022, the Company issued bonus shares to its equity shareholders in the ratio of 1:499. Pursuant to the said bonus issue, the Company
converted certain CCCPS into equity shares in the ratio of 1:500. The adjustment in the conversion ratio of CCCPS is consequent to issue of
bonus shares to equity shareholders and accordingly the Company, based on legal opinion, utilised securities premium for the same.

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. Securities premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b) Equity settled share based payment reserve

Equity settled share based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options i
and its subsidiaries under ESOP scheme.

loyees of the Company

¢) General Reserve
General Reserve created on forfeiture of ESOPs in earlier years.

d) Treasury shares reserve

Treasury Shares Reserve represents purchase value of own shares of théy
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Note 11 : Employee benefit obli

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Gratuity - 303,33 303.33 - 311.26 311.26
Compensated absences 195.62 - 195.62 206.55 - 206.55
Total employee benefit obligations . 195.62 303.33 498.95 206.55 311.26 517.81

(i) Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for eamed leaves. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.
Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

The amount of the provision of ¥ 195.62 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 — % 206.55 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
any of these obligations, However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12
months. The following amounts reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

March 31,2023  March 31,2022
(@ in Lakhs) (@ in Lakhs)

Leave obligations not expected to be settied within

the next 12 months 176.71 180.08

(i) Defined contribution plans

a) Provident Fund

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor
any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2023 towards defined contribution plan is 2 43.06 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 - ¥ 60.97 Lakhs). [Refer
Note 16]

b) Employee State Insurance

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of employee state insurance. The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2023 towards defined contribution plan is
0.64 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 - ¥ 1.65 Lakhs). [Refer Note 16]

(iii) Post employment benefit plan obligations- Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The
amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of
service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contribution to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of
funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments,

a) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Present value  Fair value of plan Net amount

of obligation assets

(T in Lakhs) % in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
April 01, 2021 337.19 (32.28) 304.91
Current service cost ¥ 101,06 - 101.06
Interest expense/(income) 21.59 (2.13) 19.46
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 122,65 (2.13) 120.52
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included - (0.04) (0.04)
in interest expense/(income)
(Gain)loss from change in demographic - - -
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (17.18) - (17.18)
Experience (gains)/losses (76.95) - (76.95)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (94.13) (0.04) (94.17)
Employer contributions - (20.00) (20.00)
Benefit payments (20.00) 20.00 -

March 31, 2022 345.71 (34.45) 311.26
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Present value  Fair value of plan Net amount
of obligation assets
(¥ in Lakhs) ( in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs)
April 01, 2022 345.71 (34.45) 311.26
Current service cost 92,95 - 92.95
Interest expense/(income) 24.06 5.77) 18.29
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 117.01 (5.77) 111.24
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included - 3.62 3.62
in interest expense/(income)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic (2.53) - (2.53)
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (27.40) . (27.40)
Experience (gains)/losses 7.14 - 714
Total t recognised in other comprehensive i (22.79) 3.62 (19.17)
Employer contributions - (100.00) (100.00)
Benefit payments (3.90) 3.90 -
March 31, 2023 436.03 (132.70) 303.33
b) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(¥ in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Present value of funded obligations 436.03 34571
Fair value of plan assets (132.70) (34.45)
Deficit of funded plan 303.33 311.26

c) The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Employees Gratuity Fund

Compensated absences

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.00% 7.20% 7.00%
Salary growth rate 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition Rate
- 18 years to 30 years 9.00% 15.00% 9.00% 15.00%
- 30 years to 44 years 11.00% 9.00% 11.00% 9.00%
- 44 years to 58 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of 2433 25.92 2433 2592
employees (years)
Mortality Rate TALM (2006-08) Ult, IALM (2006-08) Ult. IALM (2006-08) Ult. TALM (2006-08) Ult.

Assumptions regarding future mortality for pension are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience. The discount rate assumed is determined by
reference to market yield at the balance sheet date on government bonds. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market.

d) Sensitivity analysis:
Significant estimates: Sensitivity of actuarial assumptions
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

M t on defined benefit obligati
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00% -891% -11.07% 10.51% 13.04%
Salary growth rate 1.00% 1.00% 5.62% 7.69% -5.70% -7.84%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance
sheet. Assumptions other than discount rate and salary growth rate are not material for the Company.




'"looa—egzolls\{

¢) The major categories of plans assets are as follows:

Funds Managed by Insurer* - 100%
*The Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India. They do not provide breakup of plan assets by investment type.

f) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility:
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The gratuity fund is administered

through LIC under its group gratuity scheme. Accordingly almost the entire plan asset investments is maintained by the insurer. These are subject to interest rate risk which is managed by
the insurer.

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ assets maintained by the
insurer. The gratuity fund is administered through (LIC) under its group gratuity scheme.

g) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8.4 years (March 31, 2022- 9.2 years).

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted post employment benefit plan (gratuity) is as follows :

Less than Between Between Over 5 Total
a year 1-2 years 2 - Syears years
® in Lakhs) (® in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs) (® in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

March 31, 2023

Post employment defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 35.88 46.86 173,14 31897 574.85
Total 35.88 46.86 173.14 318.97 574.85
March 31, 2022

Post employment defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 724 23.65 146.23 288.29 465.41

Total 7.24 23.65 146.23 288.29 465.41




Note 12 : Financial liabilities

Note 12(a) : Trade payables
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Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
( in Lakhs) R in Lakhs)
Current
Trade payables : micro and small enterprises [Refer note 23* 3236 14.50
Trade payables : others 364.10 83594
Trade payables to related parties [Refer note 27] 29.81 67.83
Total - 42627 918.27
.
* includes X 0,10 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: ¥ 521 Lakhs) payable to Visit Health Private Limited which is a related party
Aging of Trade payables as at March 31, 2023: (¥ in Lakhs)
O ding for following periods from the due date
Particulars Unbilted Not due Less than 12 23 More than Total
1year years years 3 years
| Undisputed trade payables
Micro and small w - 24.04 8.32 - - - 3236
Others 303.85 57.82 6.39 982 0.56 1547 393.91
trade les
Micro and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - -
'Total 303.85 81.86 14.71 9.82 0.56 15.47 42627
Aging of Trade payables as at March 31, 2022; (R in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Enetcaiany Unbilled | Notdue L';“ G 12 9 [ors thaq e
year Yyears Years 3 years
Undi trade les
Micro and small enterprises - 1299 1.51 - - - 14.50
Others 683.43 33.55 66.55 028 1.23 118.73 903.77
Disputed trade payables
Micro and small enterprises - - = - = =
Others - 3 - E 5 = N
Total 683.43 46.54 68.06 028 123 118.73 91827
Note 12(b) : Other financial liabilities Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
@ in Lakhs) Q® in Lakhs)
Current
Employee related payables 613.00 353.13
Capital creditors 0.43 -
Others 262 1.90
Total 616.=05 355.03
Note 13 : Other current liabilities
As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(R in Lakhs) X in Lakhs)

Statutory dues payable
Others

Liabilities towards employees laptop scheme
Total

85.03

81.32




Note 14 : Revenue from operations

Sale of services (net of applicable taxes):

Online marketing and consulting

Commission from online aggregation of financial products
IT support services

Other operating revenues:
Intellectual property rights (IPR) fees [Refer note 27]
Total

Note 15 : Other income

Interest income
- On bank deposits
- On income tax refund
- On unwinding of discount - measured at amortised cost
Net gain on sale on financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss
Net gain - foreign exchange differences
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on termination of leases
Income from shared resources [Refer note 28]
Loss allowance no longer required written back
Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income
Total

Note 16 : Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds [Refer note 11]
Compensated absences

Gratuity [Refer note 11]

Staff welfare expenses

Employee share-based payment expense [Refer note 25(b)]
Total
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Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
38.95 2,069.67
- 37.53
911.84 1,338.91
12,463.79 6,872.25
13,414.58 10,318.36
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(Z in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
17,832.29 9,625.59
153.35 -
9.97 118.48
1,118.39 989.02
(205.29) 432.42
1.18 -
4.90 -
- 1.66
- 255.71
32.41 -
526.36 -
0.15 1.91
19,473.71 11,424.79
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(% in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
3,847.69 3,784.48
43.70 62.62
22.17 19.88
111.24 120.52
191.18 124.80
33,981.52 44,268.08
38,197.50 48,380.38




Note 17.: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

Note 18 : Advertising and promotion expenses

Advertisement and Marketing expenses
Business promotion expenses
Total

Note 19 : Network and internet expenses

Internet and server charges
IT consultancy charges
Communication expenses
Total
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Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(% in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

5.62 14.14
306.12 316.62
62.16 58.81
373.90 389.57
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (¥ 'in Lakhs)
284.24 314.16
18.43 64.00
302.67 378.16
. Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)
438.25 316.46
1.83 18.83
21.36 20.88
461.44 356.17




Note 20 : Other expenses

Electricity and water expenses [Refer note 28]
Legal and professional charges #
Repairs and maintenance
Security and housekeeping expenses
Office expense
Travel and conveyance
Recruitment expenses
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Printing and stationery
Postage and courier expense
Payment to auditors
As Auditor:
Audit fee
Tax audit fee
Certification fees
Reimbursement of expenses
In other capacities:
Other Services (IPO related, net of recovery from selling shareholders)
Reimbursement of expenses
Bank charges
Training and seminar
Loss allowance - trade receivables
Loss allowances - other financials assets
Bad debts
Corporate social responsibility expenditure [Refer note 31]
Membership fee and subscription charges '
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Net loss - foreign exchange differences
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

# includes % 176.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: ¥ 191.00 Lakhs) as sitting fees and remuneration to independent directors

Note 21 : Finance costs

Interest expenses - lease liabilities
Interest expenses - others
Total
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
56.76 28.87
418.34 1,552.57
20.48 18.50
11.28 10.83
8.38 6.86
121.85 38.65
2.01 -
27.01 96.58
14.09 11.62
2.71 1.61
- 0.19
65.00 49.00
0.50 0.50
15.00 8.00
5.93 2,53
- 225.83
- 3.76
10.44 3.38
0.40 2.42
- 19.15
- 3.36
7.42 -
- 46.63
38.56 7.99
- 0.64
0.03 0.05
- 6.02
52.63 3.00
878.82 2,148.54
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
87.98 113.48
1.72 1.36
89.70 114.84




Note 22(a) : Income tax expense
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Year ended Year ended

(i) Income tax expense March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year - -
Tax expenses related to earlier years (0.13) (56.14)
Total current tax expense (0.13) (56.14)
Deferred tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets - -
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) - =
Income tax expense (0.13) (56.14)
(ii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:
Loss before tax (7,415.74) (30,024.51)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2022 - 25.168%) # (1,866.39) (7,556.57)
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (9,321.67) (1,537.99)
Tax losses and temporary differences for which no deferred tax was recognised 11,187.94 9,038.42
Income tax expense (0.13) (56.14)

# Pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) ordinance, 2019 (ordinance) dated September 20, 2019, the Company has opted for the

concessional rate of income tax of 22%.
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Note 22(b) : Deferred tax assets (Net)

(a) Deferred tax assets (Net)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars (X in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Deferred tax liability (194.71) (271.76)
Deferred tax assets* 194.71 271.76
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) - -
* Deferred tax assets have been recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities
(b) Components of deferred tax assets
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars ® in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Property, plant and equipment & intangibles assets 30.02 3133
Employee benefit obligations 125.58 130.32
Provision for doubtful debts 0.28 7.59
Tax losses 11,022.37 8,866.85
Lease liabilities 202.22 270.84
Others 2.18 3.25
Total 11.382.65 9,310.18
(¢) Components of deferred tax liabilities
As at As at
- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars (X in Lakhs) (R in Lakhs)
Right-of-use assets 194.71 271.76
Total 194.71 271.76
(d) Unused tax losses and unrecognised temporary differences:
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars (X in Lakhs) ([ in Lakhs)
Unused tax losses 43.660.72 35,158.56
Other tax credits # 134.45 72.10
Deductible temporary differences 657.83 681.67
Total 44,453.00 35,912.33
Potential tax benefit @ 25.168% 11,187.94 9,038.42
Expiry dates for unused tax losses
- March 31, 2024 5,269.43 5,269.43
- March 31, 2026 1,709.49 1,709.49
- March 31, 2027 218.80 218.80
- March 31,2030 28,951.52 27,960.83
- March 31, 2031 7,511.47 -

# It includes unabsorbed depreciation which can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

Note: The Company has accumulated business losses of ¥ 43,795.17 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 - ¥ 35,230.66 Lakhs) [including accumulated unabsorbed
depreciation of ¥ 134.45 (Previous Year % 72.10 Lakhs)] as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The unabsorbed business losses amounting to ¥
43,660.72 Lakhs (March 31,2022 - ¥ 35,158.56 Lakhs) are available for offset for maximum period of eight years from the incurrence of loss.

As at the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company is having net deferred tax assets comprising of deductible temporary differences, brought
forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws. However, in the absence of reasonable certainty as to its realization of ax Assets (DTA),
DTA has not been recognised.
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Note 23 : Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

According to the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from suppliers, regarding their status
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the Company has amounts due to Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises under the said Act as follows:

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act remaining unpaid as 2715 11.01
at year end. [Refer note 12(a)] ’ ’
Interest due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year 172 136
end. . 7 :
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
. . 21491 349.89
appointed day during the year.
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the i
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under )
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the - -
interest specified under the MSMED Act
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 1.72 1.36
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding periods,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for 591 3.49
the purpose of disallowance of a’deductible expenditure under section 23 of the ’ '
MSMED Act [Refer note 12(a)]
Note 24 : Contingent liabilities and commitments
(i) Contingent liabilities
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts :
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Income tax matters (including interest and penalties) 6,845.47 2,556.59
6,845.47 2,556.59

b) The Company has received certain summons from the taxation authorities seeking various information/details for which the Company
is taking necessary action.

Note: It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of above pending resolution of the

respective proceedings.

(ii) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

Intangible assets 1.25

1.25
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Note 26: Earnings/(Loss) per share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loss attributable to equity shareholders (% in Lakhs) A (7.415.61) (29,968.37)
Weighted average number of equity shares of ¥ 2 each outstanding B 444 642 686 403,667,280
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denomi in calculating basic earnings per 444,921,010 409,517,780

share [Refer note 1 below]
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in

calculating diluted eamings per share [Refer note 1 below) ) SR’ 409,517,780
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per share (in %) A/C (1.67) (7.32)
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per share (in T) AD (1.67) (7.32)
Note 1: Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator:

Weighted average number of equity shares [Refer note 2 ] 444,642,686 403,667,280
- Employee stock options (vested and exercisable) 278,324 5,850,500
We:g‘hted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic/diluted 444,921,010 409,517,780
earnings per share

Note 2: Treasury shares are excluded from weighted-average numbers of Equity Shares used as a denominator in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS.

Note 3: Stock options granted to the employees under various ESOP schemes are considered to be potential equity shares. The stock options have not been included in the
determination of basic earnings per share to the extent they are unvested. Since these unvested shares would decrease the loss per share, these are anti-dilutive in nature and
therefore, not included in determination of diluted EPS as well. For details relating to stock options, refer Note 25.




Note 27 : Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures in accordance with the requirements of IND AS - 24 on Related Party Disclosures, as identified by the management are set out as below:

(2) Names of Related Parties and nature of relationship:

i) Entities where control exist — direct and indirect subsidiaries:
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Principal place of % Shareholding /
. operation / P o Voting Power
S.No. Name of the entity Country of Principal Activities A o
Incorporation March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Direct Subsidiaries
. . - . Licensed i broker, d in providing i
1 Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Lu'lm.ed India broker services 100%| 100%
2 Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited India Online comparison and sales of financial products 100% 100%
3 Icall Support Services Private Limited India Call centre operations 100%) 100%
4 Accurex Marketing and Consulting Private Limited India Support services in motor vehicle claims and related assistance 100% 100%
5 PB Marketing and Consulting Private Limited India Online, offline and direct marketing of Insurance products 100%| 100%
6 Docprime Technologies Private Limited India Engaged in online healthcare related services 100% 100%!|
7 PB Financial Account Aggregators Private Limited India Business of account aggregation 100% 100%!|
8 PB Fintech FZ-LLC UAE Online, offline and direct marketing of Insurance products 100%| 100%
. .. . Engaged in lending business and online comparison and sales of
9 MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited (w.e f June 8, 2022) India financial products 70.10% -
Indirect Subsidiaries
Visit Internet Services Private Limited (Subsidiary of Docprime Technol . g ical and related servi
1 . imited) (w.e £ J 14, 2022) India Engaged in health care, medical and related services 100% 100%
MLC Finotech Private Limited (Subsidiary of Myloancare Ventures Private " . . .
S et/ for 1 3 -
2 imited) (w.c £ October 11, 2022) India ourcing agent/service provider for lenders 70.10%
Zphin computer systems and software designing — sole proprietorship L.L.C . . i
3 | (Subsidiary of BB Fintech FZ LLC) (w.c.t November 23, 2022) LAE Information technology and related services i
ii) Associate
Principal place of % Shareholding /
N operation / HE L Voting Power
S.No. Name of the entity Country of [Principal Activities — o
Incorporation March 31, 2023 Merch 31, 2022
Direct Associates
1 MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited (subsidiary w.e.f June 8, 2022) India Engaged in lending business and online comparison and sales of 24.93%
financial products 7
Indirect Associates
'YKNP Marketing Management LLC (Associate of PB Fintech FZ LLC)(w.e f - . 0
1 N 10, 2022) UAE Engaged in online marketing and sales consulting 26.72%
Visit Health Private Limited (Associate of Docprime Technologies Private India Engaged in online healthcare related services
2 Al 31.62% 30.46%
Limited)
i under control of an en ificant influence over the Group :
Principal place of
. operation /
S.No. Name of the entity Country of
Incorporation
1 Mal Technol Limited (till November 15, 2021) India
iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP)*:
S.No Name Designation
A 5 Director, Chairman and Chief
! Mr, Yashish Daliva Executive Officer
2 Mr. Alok Bansal Whole Time Director and Vice Chairman
Chief Financial Officer (appointed w.e.f.
3 Mr. Mandeep Mehta May 02, 2022)
4 Mr. Sarbvir Singh Director
5 Ms. Kitty Agarwal Nominee Director
6 Mr. Kaushik Dutta Independent Director
7 Mr. Nilesh Bhaskar Sathe Independent Director
8 Mrs. Veena Vikas Mankar Independent Director
9 Mr. Gopalan Srinivasan Independent Director
10 Ms Liian Jessie Paul Ind dent Director
*Ind dent di are included only for the purpose of Li with definition of key personnel given under IND AS 24- Related Party Disclosures
¥) ives of key where t have taken place:
[ S.No | Name of Relatives | Relationship |
1 Ms. Swatee Agrawal |Spouse af Director = 1




vi) Transactions with related parties
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Subsidiaries / Associates / Entity under

Key M t P
S. No | Particulars control of an entity having significant «y am;‘g;'::i:es :;’l:;;';l (KMP)/
infl over the Group
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 In in equity instr
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 110,000.00 45,000.00 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 25,000.00 30,000.00 - -
Docprime Technologies Private Limited - 6,000.00 - -
PB Fintech FZ-LLC - 7,418.43 - -
PB Financial Account Aggregators Private Limited - 500,00 - -
2 1 in subsidiaries on of grant of ESOPs (to employees of subsidiaries)
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 14,088.53 11,741.52 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 5,038.58 4,004.61 - -
Docprime Technologies Private Limited 2.60 13.15 - -
PB Fintech FZ-LLC 994.64 654,76 - -
Icall Support Services Private Limited 62.55 38.72 - -
3 Investment in preference shares
MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited 4,079.23 - - S
4 Intellectual property rights (IPR) fees
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 6,339.24 3,947.67 - =
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 6,124.55 2,924.58 - =
& Cost charged to subsidiary companies for sharing of resources [Refer note 28]
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited - 209.67 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 82.05 - -
6 Amount reimbursed to subsidiary companies for other expenses :
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 23.18 53.34 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 7.24 4.74 - -
7 Amount reimbursed from for other exp
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 2,34 1.26 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 4.00 1.83 - -
PB Financial Account Aggregators Private Limited - 5.13 - -
8 Purchase of property, plant and equip from subsidiary p
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited - 324 - =
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited - 0.27 - -
9 Sale of property, plant and i to subsidiary y
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited - 0.20 = =
10 Amount reimbursed from entity under control of an entity having significant influence over
the Group (for expenses incurred by the Company)
- Others expense
Makesense Technologies Limited - 5.15 - -
11 Medical Teleservices received from associate Company
Visit Health Private Limited 248 1590 - -
12 Remuneration (Gross of Tax)
Mr. Yashish Dahiya - 21,048.16 28,45291
Mr. Mandeep Mehta - 356,27 -
Mr. Alok Bansal = 9,189.86 12,365.54
Others (Independent Directors) - Also, refer note 27(d) - - 176.00 191,00
13 IT consultancy charges
Swatee Agrawat - - 1.83 18.83
¢) Related parties bal as at year end
g = 5 Key Management Personnel (KMP) /
S.N
o Particulars Subsidiaries / Associates Relatives of KMP
Balances as at year end
14 Trade Payables [Refer note 12(a))
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 22.72 41.49 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 7.09 4.74 - =
Visit Health Private Limited 0.10 5.21 - -
Others (Independent Directors) - - - 21.60
15 Other financial assets - current [Refer note 6(g)]
Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 6,519.37 4,332.92 - -
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited 6,277.00 3,115.32 - -
PB Financial Account Aggregators Private Limited = 5,13 . -
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Note 1: The brand names "Policybazaar", "Policybazaar.com", “Paisabazaar” and "Paisab com" are owned by the PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited) (“the Holding
Company”). Therefore, the Holding Company had entered into an agreement with the Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited and Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
(“Subsidiary companies”) for an IPR fees @ 5% of the revenue of the subsidiary companies w.e.f. April 01, 2018. This fee is paid by the subsidiary companies due to the benefits accruing to the
subsidiary companies as a result of using the brand names which have provided significant impetus to the growth of the subsidiary companies over the years, rather than only enhancing the visibility

of the brand name owned by the Holding Company.

Note 2: A ts are exclusive of applicable taxes.

Note 3: All related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm's length basis. All di ivable bal are d and repayable <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>